Agenda %
5| OXFORD
E CITY

COUNCIL

Licensing and Gambling Acts

Committee

This meeting will be held on:

Date: Monday 10 February 2025

Time: 6.00 pm

Place: Oxford Town Hall

For further information please contact:

Hannah Carmody-Brown, Committee & Member Services Officer,

Committee Services Officer

@ 01865 252946 < DemocraticServices@oxford.gov.uk

Members of the public can attend to observe this meeting and.

e may register in advance to speak to the committee in accordance with the
committee’s rules

e may record all or part of the meeting in accordance with the Council’s protocol

Information about speaking and recording is set out in the agenda and on the website

Please contact the Committee Services Officer to register to speak; to discuss
recording the meeting; or with any other queries.

View or subscribe to updates for agendas, reports and minutes at
mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk.
All public papers are available from the calendar link to this meeting once published



https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20236/getting_involved_at_council_meetings
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/1100/protocol_for_recording_at_public_meetings
https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20236/getting_involved_at_council_meetings

Committee Membership
Councillors: Membership 15: Quorum 5: No substitutes are permitted.

Councillor Katherine Miles (Chair)

Councillor Naomi Waite (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Mary Clarkson
Councillor Mark Lygo
Councillor Simon Ottino
Councillor Asima Qayyum
Councillor Louise Upton
Councillor Theodore Jupp
Councillor Jo Sandelson
Councillor Dr Max Morris
Councillor Lois Muddiman
Councillor Edward Mundy
Councillor lan Yeatman
Councillor Ajaz Rehman

Councillor Mohammed Azad

Apologies and notification of substitutes received before the publication are shown
under Apologies for absence in the agenda. Those sent after publication will be
reported at the meeting. Substitutes for the Chair and Vice-chair do not take on these
roles.

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX



Agenda

Part One - Public Business

Apologies for absence
Declarations of interest

Fees & Charges

The Deputy Chief Executive for City and Citizens’ Services has
submitted a report to seek agreement of the licence fees for 2025/26
where the Council has discretion over the level of fee charged.

Recommendation(s): That the Licensing & Gambling Acts Committee
resolves to:

1. Agree the licence fees and charges for 2025/26 as set out in the
Appendix 1 and recommend it for Council to adopt.

Cumulative Impact Assessment Update

The Deputy Chief Executive for City and Citizens’ Services has
submitted a report to Present the consultation requirement in respect of
the three-yearly review of the Cumulative Impact Assessment.

Recommendation(s): That the Licensing and Gambling Acts
Committee resolves to:

1. Note the consultation process and instruct officers to proceed
with the same.

Minutes of the previous meeting

Recommendation: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 23
September 2024 as a true and accurate record.

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX

Pages

13-32

33-34



6 Dates and times of meetings

The Committee is next scheduled to meet on:
e 21 May 2025
e 22 September 2025

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX




Information for those attending

Recording and reporting on meetings held in public

Members of public and press can record, or report in other ways, the parts of the meeting
open to the public. You are not required to indicate in advance but it helps if you notify the
Committee Services Officer prior to the meeting so that they can inform the Chair and
direct you to the best place to record.

The Council asks those recording the meeting:

e To follow the protocol which can be found on the Council’s website

e Not to disturb or disrupt the meeting

e Not to edit the recording in a way that could lead to misinterpretation of the
proceedings. This includes not editing an image or views expressed in a way that may
ridicule or show a lack of respect towards those being recorded.

e To avoid recording members of the public present, even inadvertently, unless they are
addressing the meeting.

Please be aware that you may be recorded during your speech and any follow-up. If you
are attending please be aware that recording may take place and that you may be
inadvertently included in these.

The Chair of the meeting has absolute discretion to suspend or terminate any activities
that in his or her opinion are disruptive.

Councillors declaring interests
General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s
area,; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be recorded in each
councillor's Register of Interests which is publicly available on the Council’s website.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting,
you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature as well as
the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having
declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and
must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and
that “you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be
questioned”. The matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a
whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of the public.

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were
civil partners.

Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX


https://www.oxford.gov.uk/downloads/file/1100/protocol_for_recording_at_public_meetings

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

>
:EE AT
s | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
To: Licensing & Gambling Acts Committee
Date: 10" February 2025
Report of: Deputy Chief Executive for City and Citizens’ Services
Title of Report: Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005

Licence Fees and Charges for the 2025/26 financial year

Summary and recommendations

Purpose of report: To seek agreement of the licence fees for 2025/26
where the Council has discretion over the level of fee
charged

Corporate Priority Strong, fair economy.

Policy Framework Statement of Licensing Policy, Statement of Gambling

Licensing Policy

Recommendation(s):That the Licensing & Gambling Acts Committee resolves to:

1. Agree the licence fees and charges for 2025/26 as set out in the Appendix 1 and
recommend it for Council to adopt

Appendices
Appendix 1 Licensing & Gambling Acts Fees and Charges 2025/26

Introduction

1. The purpose of this report is to seek agreement to the licence fees and charges for
2025/26 where the Council has discretion over the level of fee charged. The
proposed fees and charges are set out at Appendix 1.

2. This Committee is responsible for recommending fees under the Licensing Act
2003 and Gambling Act 2005. Fees for other types of licence will be the subject of
a separate report to General Purposes Licensing Committee. All fees under the
Licensing Act are set by statute.

3. The Authority has discretion under the Gambling Act to set Gambling Premises

Licence fees up to the statutory maximum. Fees for Gaming Machine Permits and
Temporary Use Notices are set by statute.

v



The general principles when setting fees are that they must be reasonable,
proportionate and not exceed the cost of the procedures and formalities under the
relevant licensing scheme, including staffing, training, administration, testing,
inspections, regulation, and hearings.

It is proposed that for the 2025/26 Council year that no substantial variation to the
current fees and charges is made in order to provide financial stability to licence
holders in the present economic climate.

Members are invited to note the minor fee increase to the Miscellaneous Charges
section in Appendix 1, page 3.

Miscellaneous Charges

FEES & CHARGES 2024/2025 2023/24  2024/25 £ %
Copy of Premises/Person Entry in Licensing 27 00 2800 1.00 3.70
Register
Statement of Licensing Policy document 50.00 52.00 2.00 4.00
Statement of Gambling Policy document 50.00 52.00 2.00 4.00
Copy of Licensing Decision Notice 27.00 28.00 1.00 3.70
Current list of licensing applications 13.00 14.00 1.00 7.69

Viewing of Films requiring Certification - Per 15
Minutes
Issue of Film Certification 11.00 12.00 1.00 9.09

11.00 12.00 1.00 9.09

Financial implications

7.

The Council is responsible for collecting licence fees for these functions. Predicted
income from licence fees is included in the Council’s budget.

Legal issues

8.

The power to levy fees is contained in the legislation relevant to each function or in
the Local Government Act 2003 in relation to discretionary services. Licensing is
not a revenue raising function and fees and charges should reasonably represent
the costs of carrying out the function.

Equality Impact

9.

There are no adverse impacts anticipated on any person with protected
characteristics.

10. The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under the Equality Act 2010

to have due regard to the need to:

¢ Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act;

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who don’t share it;

8



e Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not (which involves having due regard, in
particular, to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.

Environmental Considerations

11. There are no environmental considerations arising directly from this report.

Report author Joshua Curnow

Licensing Team Manager
Community Safety
01865 252565

jeurnow@oxford.gov.uk




APPENDIX ONE

LICENSING & GAMBLING ACTS COMMITTEE 2024/25 2025/26 Increase/ Increase/
FEES & CHARGES 2025/2026 Charge Charge (Decrease) £ | (Decrease) %

Licensing Act 2003
Application fee
ézs:ii;;:;zns?mn\{;ri‘a:jon Fees - Premises Licenses and Club Premises 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
égﬂiﬁjsgr;?rﬁa\;ﬁj;on Fees - Premises Licenses and Club Premises 635.00 635.00 0.00 0.00
Enhanced fee for some premises with rateable value above £87,001 - Minimum 900.00 900.00 0.00 0.00
Enhanced fee for some premises with rateable value above £87,001 - Maximum 1905.00 1905.00 0.00 0.00
Additional fee for capacity of more than 5,000 people - Minimum 1000.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00
Additional fee for capacity of more than 5,000 people - Maximum 64000.00 64000.00 0.00 0.00
Annual fee
Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates - Minimum 70.00 70.00 0.00 0.00
Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates - Maximum 350.00 350.00 0.00 0.00
Enhanced fee for some premises with rateable value above £87,001 - Minimum 640.00 640.00 0.00 0.00
Enhanced fee for some premises with rateable value above £87,001 - Maximum 1050.00 1050.00 0.00 0.00
Additional fee for capacity of more than 5,000 people - Minimum 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00
Additional fee for capacity of more than 5,000 people - Maximum 32000.00 32000.00 0.00 0.00
Other Application Fees
Personal License 37.00 37.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer of Premises Licence 23.00 23.00 0.00 0.00
Change of address 10.50 10.50 0.00 0.00
Copy of licence 10.50 10.50 0.00 0.00
Temporary Event Notice 21.00 21.00 0.00 0.00
Provisional Statement 315.00 315.00 0.00 0.00

10

101



LICENSING & GAMBLING ACTS COMMITTEE 2024/25 2025/26 Increase/ Increase/

FEES & CHARGES 2025/2026 Charge Charge (Decrease) £ | (Decrease) %

Gambling Act 2005 - Premises

Bingo Premises

Application (3500 max permitted) 930.00 930.00 0.00 0.00
Annual fee (1000 max permitted) 610.00 610.00 0.00 0.00
Variation application (1750 max permitted) 1330.00 1330.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer application (1200 max permitted) 430.00 430.00 0.00 0.00
Reinstatement application (1200 max permitted) 555.00 555.00 0.00 0.00
Provisional statement application (3500 max permitted) 805.00 805.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of licence 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Notification of a change 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00

Family Entertainment Centre

Application (2000 max permitted) 750.00 750.00 0.00 0.00
Annual fee (750 max permitted) 680.00 680.00 0.00 0.00
Variation application (1000 max permitted) 1000.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer application (950 max permitted) 400.00 400.00 0.00 0.00
Reinstatement application (950 max permitted) 485.00 485.00 0.00 0.00
Provisional statement application (2000 max permitted) 660.00 660.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of licence 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Notification of a change 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00

Adult Gaming Centre

Application (2000 max permitted) 750.00 750.00 0.00 0.00
Annual fee (1000 max permitted) 680.00 680.00 0.00 0.00
Variation application (2000 max permitted) 1030.00 1030.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer application (1200 max permitted) 400.00 400.00 0.00 0.00
Reinstatement application (1200 max permitted) 485.00 485.00 0.00 0.00
Provisional statement application (2000 max permitted) 660.00 660.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of licence 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Notification of a change 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00

Betting Premises (Track)

Application (2500 max permitted) 890.00 890.00 0.00 0.00
Annual fee (1000 max permitted) 805.00 805.00 0.00 0.00
Variation application (1250 max permitted) 1250.00 1250.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer application (950 max permitted) 420.00 420.00 0.00 0.00
Reinstatement application (950 max permitted) 520.00 520.00 0.00 0.00
Provisional statement application (2500 max permitted) 730.00 730.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of licence 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Notification of a change 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00

Betting Premises (Other)

Application (3000 max permitted ) 835.00 835.00 0.00 0.00
Annual fee (600 max permitted) 600.00 600.00 0.00 0.00
Variation application (1500 max permitted) 1160.00 1160.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer application (1200 max permitted) 420.00 420.00 0.00 0.00
Reinstatement application (1200 max permitted) 520.00 520.00 0.00 0.00
Provisional statement application (3000 max permitted) 730.00 730.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of licence 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Notification of a change 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00

11

102




LICENSING & GAMBLING ACTS COMMITTEE 2024/25 2025/26 Increase/ Increase/
FEES & CHARGES 2025/2026 Charge Charge (Decrease) £ | (Decrease) %
Gambling Act 2005 - Permits
Alcohol Premises Gaming Machine Permits
Application 150.00 150.00 0.00 0.00
Existing operator application 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Annual fee 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00
Permit variation fee 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Transfer of permit 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Change of name on permit 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of permit 15.00 15.00 0.00 0.00
Notification of 2 machines 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00
Club Gaming Permits and Club Gaming Machine Permits
Application 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00
Application (Club Premises Certificate holder) 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Annual fee 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00
Permit variation fee 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Renewal 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00
Renewal (Club Premises Certificate holder) 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Permit variation fee 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of permit 15.00 15.00 0.00 0.00
Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits
Application 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00
Existing operator application 100.00 100.00 0.00 0.00
Renewal 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00
Change of name on permit 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of permit 15.00 15.00 0.00 0.00
Act 2005 Temp: y Use Notice
Submission of Notice 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00
Copy of Notice 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00
Miscellaneous Charges
Copy of Premises/Person Entry in Licensing Register 27.00 28.00 1.00 3.70
Statement of Licensing Policy document 50.00 52.00 2.00 4.00
Statement of Gambling Policy document 50.00 52.00 2.00 4.00
Copy of Licensing Decision Notice 27.00 28.00 1.00 3.70
Current list of licensing applications 13.00 14.00 1.00 7.69
Viewing of Films requiring Certification - Per 15 Minutes 11.00 12.00 1.00 9.09
Issue of Film Certification 11.00 12.00 1.00 9.09

12

103




Agenda Item 4

| %
=
5
E| A
S | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
To: Licensing & Gambling Acts Committee
Date: 10" February 2025
Report of: Deputy Chief Executive for City and Citizens’ Services
Title of Report: Review of Cumulative Impact Assessment
Summary and recommendations
Purpose of report: Present the consultation requirement in respect of the
three-yearly review of the Cumulative Impact
Assessment
Corporate Priority Strong, fair economy.

Recommendation(s):That the Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee resolves to:

1. Note the consultation process and instruct officers to proceed with the
same.

Appendices

Appendix One Current Cumulative Impact Assessment

Introduction and background

1. Aresponsibility of the Authority is to take steps to prevent public nuisance and
crime or disorder arising from the concentration of premises in an area.

2. The distribution of premises may be such as to warrant special action from the
Authority to combat exceptional problems of disorder and public nuisance over and
above the impact from individual premises.

3. If authorities have evidence that the high number or density of licensed premises in
a particular area is having a detrimental effect on one or more of the licensing

objectives, the licensing authority may consult on a cumulative impact assessment
(CIA).

4. A CIAis used as an evidence-based tool for Licensing Authorities to consider
adoption of a Special Saturation Policy; which creates a rebuttable presumption
that applications for a new Premises Licence, Club Premises Certificates or

13



materials variations will normally be refused, if relevant representations are
received, unless it can be demonstrated that the operation of the premises involved
will not add to the cumulative impact of crime and anti-social behaviour in the area.

The last CIA was consulted on from November 2021 to December 2021, and was
used to adopt Special Saturation Policies in March 2022 covering the City Centre
and the East Oxford areas.

The current CIA was published and the authority was of the opinion that the
number of licenced premises and club premises certificates within the City Centre
and East Oxford area is such that it is likely that granting further licences or
variations to licences would be inconsistent with the authority’s duty to promote the
licensing objectives.

A copy of the 2022-2025 Cumulative Impact Assessment can be found at
Appendix One.

The Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee are required to consider whether it
remains of the opinion stated within the current cumulative impact assessment.

Relevant Legislation & Guidance

8.

Section 5A(7) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that where a Licensing Authority
publishes a cumulative impact assessment, it must, before the end of each relevant
period, consider whether it remains of the opinion stated in the assessment.

Section 5A(8) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that before deciding whether it
remains of that opinion, the licensing authority must consult the persons below:

a) Thames Valley Police

b) Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service

c) Oxfordshire Public Health

d) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders
of premises licences issued by that authority

e) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders
of club premises certificates issued by that authority

f) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders
of personal licences issued by that authority

g) such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of
businesses and residents in its area

Consultation

10. An eight-week consultation period is proposed, commencing 17" February 2025,

and ending on 7™ April 2025.

14



11. Officers will evaluate each response received and any evidence provided and
provide a recommendation as to whether to amend the CIA.

12. Following consultation, the Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee will be
presented with an amended CIA, and an Equality Impact Assessment, to enable
consideration of the following options:

a) To determine that the authority remains of the opinion set out in the assessment,
and to include a statement to that effect, and set out the evidence as to why it
remains of the opinion, in a revised cumulative impact assessment.

b) To determine that the authority is no longer of the opinion set out in the
assessment, and shall publish a statement to that effect, which shall include that
any reference to the CIA and SSP in the Statement of Licensing Policy no longer
applies and any reference to it shall be removed at the earliest opportunity.

Recommendation

13. The committee is recommended to instruct the Officers to carry out a consultation
to review the cumulative impact assessment, as required by Section 5(A) of the
Licensing Act 2003. Following the consultation, all responses and the
recommendation will be presented to the Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee.

Financial Implications

14. The cost for consultation and analysis of the data for a CIA will be within the
existing budget.

Legal Issues

15. Any legal implications are contained within the report.

Equality Act Considerations

16. The Council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 to have
due regard to the need to:

¢ Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under the Act;

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who don’t share it; and

e Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not (which involves having due regard, in
particular, to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding).

Environmental Considerations

17.  There are no environmental considerations arising from this report.

15



Report author

Katie Thorp

Job title

Service area or department
Telephone

e-mail

Supervising Senior Licensing Officer
General Licensing

01865 252565
licensing@oxford.gov.uk

16



mailto:licensing@oxford.gov.uk

Licensing Authority

Cumulative Impact
Assessment 2022

2022 - 2025

APPENDIX ONE

§84

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

www.oxford.gov.uk




1. Cumulative Impact Assessments — Background

1.1 The concept of cumulative impact has been described within the Secretary of
State’s Guidance since the commencement of the 2003 Act.

1.2 The guidance describes cumulative impact as “the potential impact on the
promotion of the licensing objectives of a number of licensed premises
concentrated in one area”.

1.3 For clarity, the licensing objectives are:
e Prevention of crime and disorder
e Prevention of a public nuisance
e Public safety
e Protection of children from harm

1.4 The Licensing Authority had previously adopted a Special Saturation Policy
within its Statement of Licensing Policy, which covered both Oxford City Centre
and East Oxford, adopted following assessment of the particular impact from
the concentration of licensed premises in those areas. Due to the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Authority was unable to conduct a Cumulative Impact
Assessment when the Statement of Licensing Policy was due to be reviewed in
early 2021. The result was that the Special Saturation Policy was removed, with
the understanding that it would be reassessed later in the year.

1.5 The Policing and Crime Act 2017 amended the Licensing Act 2003 to place
‘Cumulative Impact Assessments’ on a statutory footing by introducing paragraph
5a of the Licensing Act 2003. This amendment came into force on 6th April 2018.

1.6 This Cumulative Impact Assessment is therefore being published under these
new provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. The policy will be reviewed no later
than every three years from the date it comes into force.

1.7 Section 182 Guidance states that “A Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) may
be published by a licensing authority to help it to limit the number or types of
licence applications granted in areas where there is evidence to show that the
number or density of licensed premises in the area is having a cumulative impact
and leading to problems which are undermining the licensing objectives. CIAs
relate to applications for new premises licences and club premises certificates
and applications to vary existing premises licences and club premises certificates
in a specified area”.

2. Consultation

2.1 As per section 5a of the Licensing Act 2003, in preparing the Cumulative Impact
Assessment the Licensing Authority consulted with the persons mentioned in
section 5(3) of the Licensing Act 2003, namely:

the Chief Officer of Police

the Chief Officer of the Fire and Rescue Service

persons/bodies representative of the Local Authority with the function of
public health

persons/bodies representative of local holders of premises licences
persons/bodies representative of local holders of club premises certificates
persons/bodies representative of local holders of personal licences
persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in the City of
Oxford

18



e persons/bodies representative of Child Protection Services
e other organisations as appear to the Licensing Authority to be affected by
licensing matters, including local community, cultural, educational and
entertainment organisations.
2.2 The Licensing Authority considered the views of all those consulted prior to
determining this policy.

Cumulative Impact Assessment

3.1 The assessment relates to all premises within specified areas that have a
premises licence or a club premises certificate which will be carrying on or
proposing to carry on the following licensable activities:

e The sale or supply of alcohol on or off the premises
e The provision of late night refreshment on or off the premises

3.2 ClAs do not apply to Temporary Event Notices (TENS); however it is open to the
police and environmental health authority (as relevant persons) to refer to
evidence published within a CIA when objecting to a TEN.

3.3 While the evidence underpinning the publication of this CIA should generally be
suitable as the basis for a decision to refuse an application or impose conditions,
it does not change the fundamental way that decisions are made under the 2003
Act. Each decision in an area subject to a CIA therefore still needs to be made on
a case-by-case basis and with a view to what is appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives. Importantly, the publication of this CIA would not remove
the Licensing Authority’s discretion to grant applications for new licences or
applications to vary existing licences, where the Authority considers this to be
appropriate in the light of the individual circumstances of the case.

3.4 It also does not remove the requirement for a relevant representation to be
submitted by a responsible authority or a member of the public (defined as ‘any
other person’ within the act) against an application for it to be considered by the
Licensing Sub-Committee. An application that does not receive relevant
representations is deemed granted under the Act.

3.5 The Licensing Authority’s Special Saturation Policy creates a rebuttable
presumption that an application within the designated cumulative impact areas
for new premises licences or variations that are likely to add to the existing
cumulative impact will normally be refused if relevant representations are
received. It is for the applicant to demonstrate that their application would not add
to the cumulative impact of such licensed premises in the areas. Applicants are
encouraged to liaise with the Licensing Authority and other Responsible
Authorities in advance of submitting an application.

3.6 The steps followed in considering whether to publish a CIA are summarised
below:

e dentify concern about crime and disorder; public safety; public nuisance or
protection of children from harm in a particular location.

e Consider whether there is good evidence that crime and disorder or nuisance
are occurring, or whether there are activities which pose a threat to public
safety or the protection of children from harm.

o f there is evidence that such problems are occurring, identify whether these
problems are being caused by the customers of licensed premises, or that
cumulative impact is imminent.

19



o Identify the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring (this can
involve mapping where the problems occur and identifying specific streets or
localities where such problems arise).

e Consult those specified in section 5(3) of the 2003 Act. As with consultations
in respect of the licensing policy statement as a whole, it is for each licensing
authority to determine the extent of the consultation it should undertake in
respect of a CIA (subject to the statutory requirements).

3.7 The Licensing Authority had previously adopted a special policy on cumulative
effect, known as its Special Saturation Policy, and it is now being readopted
following this Cumulative Impact Assessment.

4. Cumulative Impact Assessment Statement

4.1 This assessment is being published because the authority is of the opinion that
the number of licensed premises and club premises certificates within the City
Centre and the East Oxford area is such that it is likely that granting further
licences or variation to licences would be inconsistent with the authority’s duty to
promote the licensing objectives. This opinion has been reached after careful
consideration of evidence and data, from Thames Valley Police, the Responsible
Authorities and other persons, which show high levels of public nuisance, anti-
social behaviour and crime and disorder within these areas. Therefore it is
appropriate and necessary to control the cumulative impact in these areas.

The areas covered by the policy are the City Centre, as shown in Appendix One,
and East Oxford, predominately Cowley Road, as shown in Appendix Two.

The evidential basis for the decision to publish a Cumulative Impact Assessment
is set out in Appendix Three.

In areas where there is an excessive accumulation of off and on licensed
premises, it is relatively straight forward to provide a direct correlation between
those premises and public nuisance, anti-social behaviour and crime and
disorder in the area, through an analysis of the evidence including operating
hours of the premises and the peak times for incidents and calls for service.

5. Other mechanisms for controlling cumulative impact

5.1 There are mechanisms and interventions, both within and outside the licensing
regime, that are available for mitigating adverse impacts on the licensing
objectives and should be considered alongside local licensing policy by the
Licensing Authority, Responsible Authorities, other persons, licensed premises
and new and existing applicants: For example:

planning controls
e positive measures to create a safe and clean environment in partnership
with local businesses, transport operators and others

e the provision of CCTV,
e ample taxi ranks and Private Hire Companies licensed within district

e powers to designate parts of the city as places where alcohol may not be
consumed publicly-Public Space Protection Orders.

e confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas

¢ police enforcement of the law with regard to disorder and anti-social
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices

¢ enforcement action against those selling alcohol to people who are
inebriated

20



police powers to close some premises for up to 24 hours on the grounds
of disorder, the likelihood of disorder or excessive noise

the power of police, local businesses or residents to seek a review of the
licence or certificate

21



Appendix One — Cumulative Impact Area — Oxford City Centre

22



Appendix Two — Cumulative Impact Area — East Oxford

23



Appendix Three — Cumulative Impact Evidence

Contents

1. Police ASB incidents 2020 — LSOA level

2. Police Criminal damage crimes 2020 — LSOA level

3. Police Public Order crimes 2020 — LSOA level

4, Police Violent crime and sexual offences 2020 — LSOA level

5. Seasonal trends of top-4 LSOAs

6. CCTV incidents

7. Police data analysis methodology

8. Temporal analysis

9. Seasonal analysis

10. Geographic distribution: all NTE occurrences

11. Geographical distribution: serious violence occurrences

12. Public Health data — alcohol related admissions and mortality rates
Glossary

LSOA — Lower Super Output Area

ASB — Anti-social Behaviour

1. Police ASB incidents 2020 — LSOA level

T Hotywel o I
20l — 1320 Berollu'ldSulldll.lr';Ub(_ ]
Barton and Sandhills 054 [N
) [ Backley Cowley 150 : |
St. Clement's 118
E Woadperry Cowloy 15C
Flsfield Carfax 088
0] Stariton Churchill 10¢
o St John Cowley 158

Wytham St Clement’s 110

m'i - Blackbird Leys 184

13 - Forest Littlemore 164
Lond,, 4

[E s Churchill 108

; Littlemare 16D

> I#fley Fields 148
EOTl B A Rose Hill and Iffley 16E
North Hinksay = Headingtan Hill and North
) & - ; & Hinksey Park 12C
o b L5 St. Mary's 11F
3 Cowley Marsh 138
[‘_“1 HE":?, Cowley Marsh 13C
(i L Rose Hill and Iffley 16F
ar. Mary's 116G
lenwood sl i Kennington Garsingtai Haadinara o NED
“5 (i Sandfor (& a 20 a0 (=] a0 100 120
2021 Mapbox © OpenSireatMap a{{‘ SrHamEs Measure

24



Measure

2. Police criminal damage and arson crimes 2020 — LSOA level

Holywell oz~ I
Barton and Sandhills 0sA [

vool N 72 00

Beckley
L

Qb
-

Forest

hund%
%\

Garsing"o"o« 0 T

{fenwood

., )
~ Boars Hill
<

] S
. © 2021 Mapbox © Opensneem;,p!g

3. Police Public Order crimes 2020 — LSOA level

20

cariox a0 I

Measure
wof o ——
:‘ ~ c Beckiey Jericho and Osney 06 I
hly P b Barton and Sandhills 05A I
e 4 WMTERIORE Woodperry Cowley 158 000
st Mary's 116 [0
Stanton St Clement's 118 [N
StJohn Littlemore 164 S0
i Cowley Marsh138
St.Mary's 11F 100000
Northfield Brook 170 100000
Churchill 20¢ 10000
Blackbird Lays 17¢ 0000
Hinksey Park 12¢ [
Rose Hill and Iffley 168 |
Cowley 15C 1000
Headington 068 |
Littlemore 168 ©
Churchill 100 =
Cowley Marsh 134 000
Cowley Marsh13C =~
St. Clement's 114 100

Sk Flamantte 110 S

8 g .
{enwood L gtam, =y
Boars Hil % eIy Y Garsingtol =
©.2021 Naghox © Cpensieattiop | &

25

A0

&0

Littlemore 164 [N
Cowley Marsh 138 [

Carfax 035 [
Woodperry Churchill 10c I

Elsfield 4 Rose Hilland Iffley 16F [
Lol Stanton Churchill 10D [

3 s StJohn Blackbird Leys 17C [

3 BlackbirdLeys 18A [

. Cowey 150

i Cowley Marsh 13¢ [0
Littlemore 168 |
Headington Hill and North.. [
Northfield Brook 170 [
St.Clement's11A [
LyeValley 13 [
Northfield Brook 18C [

Churchill 0B [0

Iffley Fields 148 [
Jericha and Osney 098 [
St. Mary’s 116 [

LyeValley130 [

Marthfinld Beanl 100

30 40
Measure

80 100 120
Measure

50

140

60 70

[ERSR E—————— et S|

180 180 200



4. Police Violent crime and sexual offences 2020 — LSOA level

Holywell oz |

Measure
8.0 Ittt 3.0 o
Barton and Sandhills 054
& | Beckley Littlemore 164
p 2 by Blackbird Leys 17C
E Woodperry Cowley Marsh 138
Elsfield St. Mary's 11F
) Stanton Rose Hill and Iffley 16F
. & St John Churchill 10D
Wyiha] F Churchill 10¢
n;‘; Littlemore 168
ds A4165) ¥ Forest  Rose Hill and Iffley 16E
= : Londoy o Northfield Brook 170
1z) Cowley 15B
St. Mary’s 11G
BOTRY § . AR ,.’ Northfield Brook 18C
North, Hinksey"\ Blackbird Leys 184
As20) § Cowley Marsh 13C
6\00‘ H Horspath Headington 06A
T Iffley Fields 148
Cowley 15D
@ #nc = Hinksey Park 128
' Jericho and Osney 098
{Saweed Boars Hill Kanninoten Garsingtol irtlamara 160
% Sandford: © 0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400
©2021 Mapbox ® OpenStreethap % 7 OR fhames Measure
5. Police crime trend data —top 4 LSOAs
ASB incidents 2018 2019 2020 2021
Jul - Sept Oct- Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun Jul-Sept Oct-Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun Jul-Sept Oct- Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun
Holywell 08A 73 83 66 72 48 52 38 21 30 43 22 43
Barton and Sandhills 05A 18 14 13 24 28 18 8 25 20 23 16 13
5t. Clement's 11D 36 44 18 12 26 7 10 8 14 15 6 11
Carfax 08B 31 20 27 22 15 9 16 9 11 13 4 10
Criminal damage & arson 2018 2019 2020 2021
Jul -Sept Oct- Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun Jul-Sept Oct-Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun Jul-Sept Oct- Dec Jan—Mar Apr-—Jun
Holywell 08A 32 43 23 36 26 16 23 11 14 24 11 17
Barton and Sandhills 05A 9 5 6 12 12 4 13 12 13 7 ] 11
Littlemaore 16A 14 7 9 [ 14 4 6 13 5 12 5
Carfax 08B 17 10 9 9 5 7 3 7 10 9 8 4
Public order 2018 2019 2020 2021
Jul -Sept Oct- Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun Jul-Sept Oct-Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun Jul-Sept Oct-Dec Jan—Mar Apr-—Jun
Holywell 08A 56 48 49 57 37 55 54 24 59 60 61 a7
Carfax 08B 14 1a 13 17 20 15 24 8 13 26 15 1a
lericho and Osney 09B 2 2 1 4 3 2 9 11 13 24 22
St. Mary's 11G [ 2 2 9 8 6 9 4 9 [ 9 15
Vicolence & sexual 2018 2019 2020 2021
Jul -Sept Oct- Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun Jul-Sept Oct-Dec Jan—Mar Apr—Jun Jul-Sept Oct-Dec Jan—Mar Apr-—Jun
Holywell 08A 176 187 175 136 171 183 161 56 94 82 56 130
Carfax 08B 29 36 35 30 38 39 39 24 44 48 31 &7
Barton and Sandhills 05A 32 22 23 22 36 26 29 35 38 32 27 49
Littlemore 16A 24 35 34 27 39 17 35 34 26 30 27 31

26

Total
591
220
207
191

Total
276
113
101

98

Total
657
201

93
85

Total
1607
460
372
359



6. CCTVincidents

CCTV Incidents by hour

700
600
500

40

o

30

o

20

o

10

o

w2019 m2020

The graph illustrates the peak hours of incidents monitored by public space CCTV
cameras in the city. It is not possible to disaggregate the small number of cameras in
neighbourhood areas from the cameras in the city centre.

This hourly breakdown is clearly linked to public space incidents during the night-time
economy period.

7. Police Analysis of Violent Crime in the NTE: Methodology

Data from the police occurrence record keeping system for occurrences taking place
within the Oxford Local Police Area with a reported date between 01/01/2017 and
26/04/2021 and with the Home Office Statistics Code 1 representing Violence Against the
Person or Disorder.

Cancelled, historic or occurrences where the date was unknown were removed from the
data set.

VAP and Disorder are very broad categories and include many occurrences unrelated to
the NTE, attempts were made to refine the focus of the data by removing occurrences
where the Location was recorded as a Dwelling or using the following criteria:

The data set resulting from the described initial search and filtering criteria comprised
4,523 occurrences which were considered to be related to Oxford’s Night Time Economy.
This data set was then analysed using Microsoft Excel and Esri ArcMap.

27



8. Police Analysis of Violent Crime in the NTE: Temporal Distribution

The temporal distribution of the 4,514 occurrences for which a time could be determined
is shown below. It should be noted that 314 of these had an Event Start Time recorded as
00:00 — upon further investigation 305 of these were changed to a more accurate time
based on Recorded Time, Event End Time and times noted in the summary report.

Fig. 1 O o o o o o o o o
e 2 2 2 2 2 e 2 2 ©
o &N &M < ;O o AN M O =
A - - - A g N A e ©
O © o o o o o o o 2
e @ o 9o o 9 @ o o P
o - ~ m <t (Fp] — ~ m —
© o o o ©o o NN N G]
Monday 44 43 38 40 21 3 71 86 62 408
Tuesday 39 33 50 69 21 3 102 77 85 479
Wednesday 45 42 30 41 24 102 94 72 450
Thursday 60 44 61 42 18 4 99 61 68 457
Friday 52 47 64 56 29 3 94 114 122 581
Saturday 115 131 143 165 78 6 113 125 141 1017
Sunday 147 216 202 210 98 S 88 80 76 1122

502 556 588 623 289 24 669 637 626 4514

Figure 1: Distribution of occurrences by time and day of week

Shows what we might expect intuitively: almost half (47%) of occurrences linked to
Oxford’s NTE occur on either a Saturday or a Sunday. The busiest period is between
01:00 and 04:00 on a Sunday morning, with those 3 hours alone accounting for 14% of
occurrences analysed.

Fig. 2
o o o o o o o o o
Q Q Q Q Q Q 2 2 Q ©
- N 2] < LN © NI S 2
i IR -G A I Bt Nos e 2
o o o o o o o o o 2
Q Q Q Q Q Q @ 2 e ©
o — (] o < T} — N [90] —
o o o o o o : o~ ~N ~N O
Monday 12 9 7 5 5 1 3 4 3 49
Tuesday 11 6 12 18 16 8 2 5 7 85
Wednesday 7 8 5 5 3 3 2 2 7 42
Thursday 13 10 13 9 15 3 6 2 5 76
Friday 6 12 7 8 10 2 11 7 5 68
Saturday 15 27 32 28 40 16 10 5 14 187
Sunday 18 59 52 41 59 22 6 3 7 267
82 131 128 114 148 55 40 28 48 774

Figure 2: Distribution of NTE-related hospitalisations to John Radcliffe A&E by
time and day of week

28



Shows the distribution of admissions to the Accident & Emergency department of the
John Radcliffe hospital between August 2017 and August 2020 which were classified
as Apparent Assaults in which alcohol was believed to be a factor. The distribution
largely mirrors the conclusion drawn from analysis of the temporal distribution of NTE-
linked occurrences in Oxford, with an even greater focus on the early hours of Sunday
morning (and to a lesser extent of Saturday morning).

9. Police Analysis of Violent Crime in the NTE: Seasonality

The count of NTE-linked occurrences taking place in each month of 2017, 2018, and
2019 is illustrated below. The chart does not suggest any great degree of predictable
seasonality, although it appears that occurrence counts in November and December
may be particularly high. These monthly counts were then compared to the expected
level (based on the 12 month centred moving average) to determine whether any

months appeared to have occurrence counts consistently above the expected count.

140 Month 2017 2018 2019
Jan -27  -28 -8
Feb -13 3 20

120
Mar -15 7 6
Apr -2 -18 -22
100 May -3 15| -32
Jun -2 1 13
an Jul -8 12 -6
Aug -12 -4 -2
Sep -8 7 -25

&0
lan Feb  Mar  Apr May  Jun Jul Aug Lep Oct Moy Dec Oct 4 -2 18
Nov 1 4 13

2017 2018 2019

Dec 26 13 28

This analysis accounts for changing trends (2017 saw a steadily rising number of
monthly occurrence counts, leading to consistently higher levels in 2018). It clearly
shows that December NTE-linked occurrence counts were higher than expected in
every year from 2017 to 2019, and that January occurrence counts were lower than
expected in every year. April and August were also consistently lower than expected,
albeit to a lesser extent than January, and November was also associated with
marginally higher than expected NTE occurrence counts.

10. Police Analysis of Violent Crime in the NTE: Geographic distribution

The following heat maps show locations of NTE occurrences in Oxford, using a 100m
x 100m grid overlaid on a map of the police area with the count of occurrences
recorded as taking place within each grid square being indicated by the colour of the
square.

The map clearly indicates that the most notable areas in which NTE occurrences
have taken place are: the city centre area focused on Park End Street, Hythe Bridge
Street and Cornmarket; Magdalen roundabout, the Cowley Road between Union

29



Street and East Avenue (02 Academy and Cowley Retreat area); the A&E
department of the John Radcliffe Hospital; and the Littlemore Mental Health Centre. It
is possible (although not confirmed) that the hospital events may include occurrences
that took place elsewhere and were reported from the hospital location.

sumnor Hill Hinkse
Villag
Légend''
All NTE Occurrences
Count_

1

210 outh M inkse
11-25

26 - 50
51-185

11. Police Analysis of Violent Crime in the NTE: Geographic distribution

Serious violence offences.

Serious violence in Oxford’s NTE appears to be highly focused in city centre
areas, in particular: Queen Street / Cornmarket Street and Park End Street / Hythe
Bridge Street.

30



a [
\: ) | ; L
. ti A “._. |,-|_|:=:-_E|._,:,.: Elsfigld a
N - ML 2= 84027
.l-;.l reote \ Illll < Sunmymead
sroote \.‘ | \
\ o =
W ) e -
\;JL sLimim ertown i:'i-ll-"--, Marsien B .
\ =
) MNew .
Fark - |
| \ Marstan = Lley arten d /1]
3 \ | ATown _I Headington E"._t::'ﬂ' ;
Hig II Nail . AMNorham §5 Sandhilk
\ Wy al oy lr|] ano| -‘.;' - - 'D = .
1 Meqo @ i o
| e % H’.‘d'.':ll'Jl'.:H

Duarmy TRisingurst

H=acingt '.'|I_

\
A HHill

PCEETT FEEEE%"‘H New Headmggtan :-i|-|_-l-_ ver-Hil
Se, m q:EP
wMorth o E‘ EZHS E||_

"_f':l'l"_‘;li.__'l’. ‘Count_ § Cliar !' L= O §
Harcourt Hill-* 1 I\I_ ':'::_ 5 4 o
I:I 2 ‘..\'\!l""n’ Hinks ey A &\ .'_:‘..I.I I|D
|:|3 \ \ o Florence'Fark Coiley 5
g I\I D = . i ’
- AT ColgHarbour | ffiey o 5 4

- -7, ’ WAL : Rose,Hill y
Soutty H inks ey '.\ . B o .-/EI

o |

| A o

i L = / D D

\ i s gﬂ-‘lwll:-l;l‘;l /S F‘-l:l-'i-‘%‘-lB]
i P O Meys

\ " X
: I« w-lflll'lll}"l- ! 0 O %
il | \

12. Public Health Data

The table below shows the alcohol related hospital admissions and mortality rates for
Oxford.

Compared to England: & better "I similar B worse

Alcohol related mortality 2018 46.5 411 48.6
Admission episodes for alcohol
related conditions

Admission episodes for alcohol
specific conditions

Admission episodes for alcohol 2016/17-
specific conditions -Under 18s 18/19

2018-19 664 526 640

2018-9 626 522 741m

31.6 31.7 50.0m

31



Hospital admissions of alcohol
related cardiovascular disease 2018/19 776 613 791
(female)

Hospital admissions for mental
and behavioural disorders due to 2018/19 75.6 52.2 97.9m
alcohol

Hospital admissions for alcoholic
liver disease

Source: PHE: Population Health Analysis (PHA) team using data from NHS Digital and ONS

2018/19 131.2 96.0 138.4

The trend for hospital admissions for alcohol related conditions is increasing. There is also
an increase in the trend for hospital admissions for alcohol related cardiovascular diseases.

32



Agenda Iltem 5

=L
Minutes of a meeting of the g, %
: : : . E| AAA
Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee 2| oo
)

CITY
on Monday 23 September 2024 § camy
Committee members present:

Councillor Miles (Chair) Councillor Waite (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Ottino Councillor Sandelson
Councillor Muddiman Councillor Mundy

Councillor Yeatman

Officers present for all or part of the meeting:

Alison Daly, Legal Advisor

Emma Thompson, Senior Licensing Compliance Officer
Celeste Reyeslao, Committee and Member Services Officer
Uswah Khan, Committee and Member Services Officer

Apologies:
Councillor(s) Qayyum, Jupp and Max Morris sent apologies.

8. Declarations of interest
None.

9. Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2025-2028

The Executive Director for Communities and People had submitted a report to agree
the revised draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy following public consultation.

Emma Thompson, Senior Compliance Licensing Officer introduced the report. She
informed the Committee that Gambling Act 2005 required Licensing Authorities to
review its policies every three years; the current Policy was due to expire on 30
January 2025. Proposed revisions included amendments to the Licensing Authority and
other Responsible Authority's addresses, an amended map of Oxford with new ward
names and boundaries, along with minor textual amendments as highlighted in the
supplied report. Though not required, the Local Area Profile had also been revised to
reflect update hyperlinks of relevant webpages for better awareness of the local area
and risks.

The Licensing Officer added that an assessment of the Policy's impact on groups

protected by the Equality Act 2010, as well as a six-week consultation, were carried
out. The results of which had been appended to the report.

33



The Committee expressed thanks to the Officers involved in the revision of the Policy
and managed the consultation process.

During the discussion, the Committee noted the following points:

e The Gambling Commission oversaw the process of a licence review initiated by
Interested Parties or Responsible Authorities. Relevant applications would then
be submitted to the Licensing Authority who would then bring the matter to the
Licensing and Gambling Acts Sub-Committee for determination. This process
was set out on page 28 of the Policy.

o The Committee queried why Gamblers Anonymous was not listed as an
organisation consulted. It was confirmed that Gamblers Anonymous had been
consulted as part of the process and received both email and paper notifications.
It was assumed that the Gambling Commission did not designate them as a
statutory consultee.

« A minor typo in the table of contents, under Part B, number 23.

The Committee suggested including additional text on page 21, under section 25,
stating that any licence review requests would be referred to the LGA Sub-Committee,
with a cross-reference to the table on page 28 of the Policy for further clarity.

The Committee resolved to:
1. Agree the revised draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy following public
consultation;
2. Recommend the agreed Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy to Full Council
for adoption.

10. Minutes of the previous meeting

The Committee resolved to approve the minutes of the meeting held 20 May 2024 as a
true and accurate record.

11. Dates and times of meetings
The Committee noted the dates and times of future meetings.

The meeting started at 6:05 pm and ended at 6:20 pm
[0 3 T- T S Date: Monday 10 February 2025

When decisions take effect:

Cabinet: after the call-in and review period has expired

Planning Committees: after the call-in and review period has expired and the formal
decision notice is issued

All other committees: immediately.

Details are in the Council’s Constitution.

34
Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate’s Oxford OX1 1BX



	Agenda
	3 Fees & Charges
	Introduction
	Financial implications
	Legal issues

	4 Cumulative Impact Assessment Update
	REPORT CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT (002)
	Introduction and background
	Relevant Legislation & Guidance
	Financial Implications
	Legal Issues

	APPENDIX ONE

	5 Minutes of the previous meeting

